
1 
 

VILLAGE OF GRAFTON 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

DECEMBER 14, 2011 
 
The Parks and Recreation Board meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair Meg 
Canepa 
 
Members present:  Meg Canepa, Sue Meinecke, Dave Antoine, Jim Miller, Gigi 
Hafemann and Joe Hildebrand 
 
Absent: Fran Betz 
 
Staff / Officials present:  Director of Parks and Recreation John Safstrom, Village 
Administrator Darrell Hofland and Senior Coordinator / Recreation Supervisor Karin 
Sevener. 
 
 
MINUTES 

Motion by Dave Antoine, seconded by Jim Miller, to approve the 
November 23, 2011 Parks and Recreation Board meeting minutes. 
Approved unanimously.  

 
PERSONS REQUESTING TO BE HEARD 
Administrator Hofland reported to the Parks and Recreation Board the circumstances of 
the YMCA interest in possibly submitting a proposal to operate the Family Aquatic 
Center. Administrator Hofland reported that annually, the YMCA Feith Family Executive 
Director has approached the Village to explore collaboration opportunities and offer its 
services to the Village. This past year, the YMCA also inquired if the Village would 
entertain a proposal to operate the Family Aquatic Center.  
 
PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES FEES POLICY 
Director Safstrom explained program fee recommendations as they relate to the proposed 
Programs and Activities Fee Policy. Anticipated indirect costs for recreation programs in 
2012 are $49,080. This amount was then spread out over 34 recreation programs. 
Nineteen of these programs were then placed into Level II of the proposed policy which 
allows for the recovery of 100 percent of direct program costs and 75 percent of indirect 
program costs over a 5 year period. The impact for 2012 is $3,008. Director Safstrom 
reported the he believed the fairest way to achieve this increase would be to implement a 
$3 increase for residents and non-resident for all nineteen programs in 2012. Several 
comparable programs from Cedarburg and Port Washington were also discussed. Jim 
Miller asked for clarification that all programs will increase by $15 in five years. Director 
Safstrom responded yes, all programs would increase by approximately $15 over the next 
5 years. 
 



2 
 

Director Safstrom also stated that he thinks the Parks and Recreation Board should 
consider these changes in an effort to aid in the 2013 budget process. 
 
Jim Miller questioned if the eventual goal is for the Parks and Recreation Department to be 
self –sustaining. Director Safstrom replied that the Parks and Recreation Department 
should do whatever it can to alleviate any future budget strains. 
 
Trustee Antoine asked if we have had to eliminate programs due to low attendance. 
Director Safstrom replied yes, we have had to eliminate Sandlot two years ago due to low 
enrollment. 
 
Jim Miller asked Administrator Hofland what are the options for our department. 
 
Administrator Hofland replied that different departments are competing for the same 
property tax dollar.  The challenges for the Parks and Recreation Department and the 
Library are that they are not core but optional services. According to recent Village surveys 
however, residents feel these two departments are important for the quality of life in the 
Village. 
 
Trustee Meinecke thinks that current fees are reasonable and there is room for increase. 
 
Director Safstrom stated that the Cedarburg Parks and Recreation Department recovers 
the costs associated with their Recreation Supervisor’s position 
 
Chair Canepa indicated that price increases should be gradual. 
 
Chair Canepa asked if our departments could utilize sponsors. 
 
Director Safstrom replied that the Mid-Ozaukee Softball program is the only program that 
utilizes sponsors as they have before he was the Director.  This is the only program that 
uses outside sponsorships.  Village policy is not to approach businesses for sponsorships.   
 
Trustee Antoine agreed that so many organizations are fighting for the same dollar.  
 
Director Safstrom responded that Cedarburg incorporates sponsors in their recreation 
book. 
 
Joe Hildebrand asked if we could offer programs with less staff. 
 
Director Safstrom stated that we could use more volunteers and that we do utilize parent 
volunteers in several of our programs. 
 
Joe Hildebrand asked if we will have to pay for maintenance staff in the schools. 
 
Director Safstrom replied that an agreement has been made which allowed the Village to 
reduce the 2012 budget by approximately $2,800. 



3 
 

 
Joe Hildebrand questioned if we offer any assistance with families who are struggling with 
a financial hardship?  Director Safstrom responded that in 2008 our department offered a 
discount to families that could show hardship. 
 
Joe Hildebrand asked if the fee for a recreational program could be waived if the parent 
offers to volunteer. Director Safstrom replied that he would place this on the January 2012 
agenda. 
 

Motion by Chair Canepa, seconded by Joe Hildebrand to recommend the 
Village Board approve the recommended $3 increase in 2012 for the 
programs presented. Approved by 5-1 (Miller - nay). 
 

NEW PROGRAM REQUEST – DERBY LITE 
Recreation Supervisor Sevener explained that Derby Lite originated from the Park District 
in Oak Park, IL and has now grown to other Park Districts.  Derby Lite is designed for 
women 18 years and older who would like to practice skills and drills related to competitive 
roller derby without the contact or impact of that sport.  There is a certified Derby Lite 
instructor who lives in Cedarburg and has offered to teach Derby Lite for a joint recreation 
program for the Grafton, Port Washington and Cedarburg Park and Recreation 
Departments.  Classes will be held for women 18 and older at Ozaukee Skateland.  
Participants will pay five dollars to their local Park and Recreation Department to cover 
administrative costs. The Village will not incur any costs associated for personal, insurance 
or equipment.   
 
Chair Canepa commented that it sounds like a fun program. 
 

Motion by Jim Miller, seconded by Trustee Meinecke to recommend Village 
Board approve the Derby Lite program, as presented. Approved 
unanimously. 

 
BENCHMARK MEASUREMENTS 
Board members reviewed the Department’s monthly benchmarks. 
 
Trustee Meinecke noted that the resident satisfaction ratings from the recent community 
survey are good. 
 
Director Safstrom is hopeful that more people will use Survey Monkey to provide feedback 
to the Village. 
 
PARK AND OPEN SPACE FUND/PARK AND RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND 
REPORT 
Board members had no comments regarding the Department’s monthly report. 
 
 
 



4 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
Recreation Supervisor Sevener stated that the exterior improvements at the Multi-purpose 
Senior Center are completed.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Recreation Supervisor Sevener commented that the tri-community Polar Express program 
is this Saturday at the Port Washington Firehouse.  Next year the program will rotate to 
Grafton and we will need to find a location to host this event. 
 
Director Safstrom stated that our department sold out of tickets for this youth event two 
weeks ago. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
None. 
 
ADJOURN 

Motion by Chair Canepa, seconded by Trustee Antoine to adjourn at 6:50 
p.m.  Approved unanimously. 


